AGENDA
of the
Executive Committee
of the Capital Area Regional Planning Commission

November 10, 2025 Zoom Webinar 5:15 pm

Participant Information

Meeting Accommodation: This meeting will take place via Zoom. You may participate in the meeting from your
computer, tablet, or smartphone at this URL:
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/839897221787?pwd=RjJQc6tY4f6aW279SN3rt3TkXi21af.1
Dial in by phone: 1-312-626-6799
Meeting ID: 839 8972 2178
Passcode: 282772

If you need other accommodation to attend the meeting, please call Matt Kozlowski at 608-474-6017 or email at
MatthewKoz@CapitalAreaRPC.org.

Speaking at RPC Meetings: Oral comments from members of the public may be heard for individual agenda
items when called upon by the Chair. The time limit for comments by each attendee will be three (3) minutes
unless additional time is granted at the discretion of the Chair. The RPC may alter the order of the agenda items
at the meeting.

Written Communications: Written communications intended to be provided to the Committee as part of the
packet should be sent to info@capitalarearpc.org and will be provided to Commissioners at or before the meeting.

Quorum may be Present:. CARPC Commissioners who are not members of the Executive Committee may
attend Executive Committee meetings, which may constitute a quorum of the RPC.

MISSION: Strengthen the region by engaging communities through planning, collaboration, and assistance.

VISION: A region where communities create an exceptional quality of life for all by working together to solve
regional challenges.

Agenda
1. Establish Quorum

2. Public Comment on Matters Not on the Agenda

3. Minutes of October 6, 2025, Executive Committee Meeting (actionable item)

4. Acknowledgement of Receipt - September 2025 Financial Management Report (actionable item)
5. Recommendation to approve - 2026 Cost Allocation Plan (actionable item)

6. Recommendation to Authorize Executive Director to Execute Agreements with the Towns of Berry,
Blue Mounds, Bristol, Springfield, Sun Prairie — 2026-2027 Mapping and Data Services (actionable
item)

7. Recommendation to authorize Executive Director to sign - Joint Planning Assistance Services
Agreement to provide assistance to the City of Fitchburg and Village of Oregon (actionable item)

NOTE: If you need an interpreter, translator, materials in alternate formats or other accommodations to access this service, activity, or program, please call the
phone number below at least three business days prior to the meeting.

NOTA: Si necesita un intérprete, un traductor, materiales en formatos alternativos u otros arreglos para acceder a este servicio, actividad o programa, comuniquese
al numero de teléfono que figura a continuacion tres dias habiles como minimo antes de la reunién.

LUS CIM: Yog hais tias koj xav tau ib tug neeg txhais lus, ib tug neeg txhais ntawv, cov ntawv ua lwm hom ntawv los sis lwm cov kev pab kom siv tau cov kev pab,
cov kev ua ub no (activity) los sis ghov kev pab cuam, thov hu rau tus xov tooj hauv qab yam tsawg peb hnub ua hauj lwm ua ntej yuav tuaj sib tham.

CARPC staff 608 4746017 / TDD 608 474 6017

Page 1 of 58


https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83989722178?pwd=RjJQc6tY4f6aW279SN3rt3TkXi21af.1
mailto:info@capitalarearpc.org

8. Recommendation to authorize Executive Director to sign - 2026 Audit Services Agreement with
Johnson Block to conduct the 2025 audit (actionable item)

9. Future Agenda Items (next meeting is Monday, December 8, 2025, via Zoom Webinar and in person at the
CARPC office 100 State St. at 5:15 pm)

a. Review and update — CARPC Internal Control Procedures (Dec)
b. Executive Director Annual Review (Dec)

10. Adjournment

NOTE: If you need an interpreter, translator, materials in alternate formats or other accommodations to access this service, activity, or program, please call the
phone number below at least three business days prior to the meeting.

NOTA: Si necesita un intérprete, un traductor, materiales en formatos alternativos u otros arreglos para acceder a este servicio, actividad o programa, comuniquese
al numero de teléfono que figura a continuacion tres dias habiles como minimo antes de la reunién.

LUS CIM: Yog hais tias koj xav tau ib tug neeg txhais lus, ib tug neeg txhais ntawv, cov ntawv ua lwm hom ntawv los sis lwm cov kev pab kom siv tau cov kev pab,
cov kev ua ub no (activity) los sis ghov kev pab cuam, thov hu rau tus xov tooj hauv qab yam tsawg peb hnub ua hauj lwm ua ntej yuav tuaj sib tham.

CARPC staff 608 4746017 / TDD 608 474 6017

Page 2 of 58



DRAFT MINUTES
of the
Executive Committee
of the Capital Area Regional Planning Commission

October 6, 2025 Zoom Webinar 5:15 pm

Commissioners Present: David Pfeiffer, Maureen Crombie, Cynthia Richson, Heidi Murphy, Bill Tishler, Peter
McKeever

Commissioners Absent: None
Staff Present: Jason Valerius, Matt Kozlowski

Others Present:

1. Establish Quorum
The meeting was called to order by Chair Pfeiffer at 5:15 pm. Quorum was established.
2. Public Comment on Matters not on the agenda
None
3. Minutes of September 8, 2025, Executive Committee Meeting (actionable item) (5:16 pm)

Motion to approve minutes of the September 8, 2025 meeting was made by Commissioner Crombie.
Commissioner Murphy seconded.

Motion to amend the minutes of the September 8, 2025 meeting to refine the details under #4 July 2025
Financial Statements (actionable item) was made by Commissioner Richson. Commissioner Crombie
seconded. The motion carried unanimously.

On the motion to approve the minutes of the September 8, 2025 meeting, as amended, Peter McKeever
abstains. The motion passed on a voice vote.

4. Acknowledgement of Receipt — August 2025 Financial Management Report (actionable item) (5:18 pm)

Motion to acknowledge receipt of August 2025 Financial Statements was made by Commissioner Richson.
Commissioner Crombie seconded. The motion carried unanimously.

5. Future Agenda Items (next meeting is Monday, November 10, 2025, via Zoom Webinar at 5:15 pm)

2026 audit services agreement to conduct 2025 audit (Nov/Dec)
Potential amendments to the 2026 CARPC budget (Dec)

Renewed service contract with opt-out towns (Nov/Dec)

Review and update — CARPC Internal Controls Procedures (Nov/Dec)
Executive Director Annual Review (Dec)

Banking Proposal — One Community Bank (Nov)

~PQo0TD

6. Adjournment

Motion to adjourn was made by Commissioner Murphy and seconded by Commissioner Richson.
Meeting was adjourned at 5:34 pm.

Page 3 of 58



CARPC EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE AGENDA COVER SHEET November 10, 2025
Item 04

Re: September 2025 Financial Management Report (actionable item)

Requested Action:

Motion to Acknowledge Receipt of September 2025 Financial Management Report

Background:

Continuous process improvement is the goal of the Agency regarding its financial systems, policies and
procedures.

Each month the Administrative Services Manager prepares a full financial packet for review by the
Executive Director and Commission Treasurer, who each sign off on the packet when they are satisfied
that it is an acceptable representation of the Commission’s fiscal condition.

The Executive Committee and Commission then receive copies of the Management Report supplied by
Berndt CPAs for review at the monthly meetings.

Staff Comments:

Requests for additional financial information or reports may be directed to the ASM.

Attachments:

1. September 2025 Financial Management Report

Staff Contact:

Matt Koz

Administrative Services Manager
MatthewKoz@CapitalAreaRPC.org
(608) 474-6017

Next Steps:

Ongoing discussions about improvements to the CARPC financial systems, policies, and procedures.

Page 4 of 58



mailto:MatthewKoz@CapitalAreaRPC.org

Management Report

Capital Area Regional Planning Commission
For the period ended September 30, 2025

CAPITAL AREA

Sipé

Prepared by

Berndt CPA

Prepared on

October 22, 2025

For management use only
Page 5 of 58



Table of contents

Statement of Financial Position .......

Statement of Activity with Year to Date Comparison

Budget vs. Actuals 9 Months Ended

Budget vs. Actuals For Current Month

A/R Aging Summary ........cccceeeeeiinnne

Page 6 of 58



Statement of Financial Position

Total
ASSETS
Current Assets
Bank Accounts
1000 OPERATING ACCOUNT 81,881
1001 MONEY MARKET ACCOUNT 148,125
1002 INVESTMENT ACCOUNT 779,314
1072 BILL.COM - MONEY OUT CLEARING 19,316
Total Bank Accounts 1,028,637
Accounts Receivable
1105 PROJECT AND GRANTS REC 219,332
Total Accounts Receivable 219,332
Other Current Assets
1110 UNBILLED ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 81,424
1150 PREPAID EXPENSES 1,749
1151 PREPAID INSURANCE 0
1152 PREPAID DENTAL INSURANCE 3,583
1153 PREPAID HEALTH INSURANCE 21,120
1154 PREPAID DISABILITY INSURANCE 39
1155 PREPAID RENT 0
1156 PREPAID LIFE INSURANCE 0
1157 PREPAID PARKING 475
1165 PREPAID LICENSES 0
1170 UNDEPOSITED FUNDS 8,675
Total Other Current Assets 117,065
Total Current Assets 1,365,034
Fixed Assets
1200 FURNITURE AND EQUIPMENT 7,172
1201 ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION-FURNITURE/EQUIPMENT (7,172)
1210 RIGHT OF USE ASSET 6,077
1211 ACCUMULATED AMORTIZATION (3,393)
Total Fixed Assets 2,684
TOTAL ASSETS $1,367,718
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
3000 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 14,755
Total Accounts Payable 14,755

Page 7 of 58



Credit Cards
3002 PARK BANK CREDIT CARD
3003 CREDIT CARD
Total 3002 PARK BANK CREDIT CARD
Total Credit Cards
Other Current Liabilities
3005 ACCRUED PAYROLL
3010 ACCRUED COOP WATER RESOURCE MONITORING
3015 ACCRUED PREPAID LIABILITIES
3202 WRS PENSION PLAN
3206 WI DEFERRED COMPENSATION PROGRAM
3300 UNUSED VACATION, WELLNESS
3500 SICK LEAVE ACCRUAL PAY
3600 DEFERRED/UNEARNED REVENUE
3650 INVEST IN CAPITAL ASSETS
3655 INVEST IN RIGHT OF USE
Total Other Current Liabilities
Total Current Liabilities
Total Liabilities
Equity
3700 PRIOR YEAR BALANCE
3701 PRIOR YEAR FUND BALANCE
3702 CURRENT FUND BALANCE
Net Revenue
Total Equity
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Total

0
3,449
3,449
3,449

47,548
13,784
37,195
5,855

0
55,613
95,578
330,744
0

2,987
589,305
607,509
607,509

(118,524)
908,395
200
(29,862)
760,209
$1,367,718

Page 8 of 58



Statement of Activity with Year to Date Comparison

Total
Sep 2025 Jan - Sep, 2025 (YTD)
REVENUE
5000 PROPERTY TAX REVENUE
5001 DANE COUNTY PROP TAX-OTH 100,778 906,999
Total 5000 PROPERTY TAX REVENUE 100,778 906,999
5100 STATE/FEDERAL GRANTS
5101 EPA/DNR Water Planning. 5,070 79,737
5102 EPA/DNR GRANT FUNDS 3,050 28,242
5103 WEM/FEMA/HMGP GRANT FUNDS 8,464 76,094
5202 EPA/DNR WATER PLANNING 0
5403 WisDOT PLAN INTEGRATION 4,510 4,510
Total 5100 STATE/FEDERAL GRANTS 21,094 188,583
5200 PASS THROUGH REVENUE
5201 WisDOT RURAL WORK PROGRAM 1,505 (456)
5220 COOP WATER RESOURCE MONITORING 22,276 151,686
Total 5200 PASS THROUGH REVENUE 23,781 151,230
5207 5207 0
5300 FEES REVENUE 0
5301 FEES - SEWER EXTENSIONS 5,600 36,600
5302 FEES-USA/LSA APP REVIEW 12,442
Total 5300 FEES REVENUE 5,600 49,042
5400 SERVICES REVENUE
5401 LOCAL & REGIONAL PLAN ASSISTANCE 22,868 59,198
Total 5400 SERVICES REVENUE 22,868 59,198
5500 OTHER REVENUE
5501 INTEREST INCOME 3,148 23,611
5502 MISCELLANEOUS REVENUES 6 4,366
5505 WI SALT WISE 7,810 102,143
Total 5500 OTHER REVENUE 10,964 130,120
6570 REVENUE REFUNDS (17,762)
Total Revenue 185,085 1,467,411
GROSS PROFIT 185,085 1,467,411
EXPENDITURES
6100 SALARIES AND LEAVE TIME
6101 DIRECT SALARIES & WAGES 70,913 659,061
6102 COMPENSATED LEAVE TIME 20,474 150,470
Total 6100 SALARIES AND LEAVE TIME 91,387 809,531

6104 FRINGE BENEFITS

Page 9 of 58



6105 FICA BENEFITS

6116 LIFE INSURANCE

6117 DENTAL INSURANCE
6118 HEALTH INSURANCE
6119 DISABILITY INSURANCE
6120 COMMUTE CARDS

6121 WRS-ER CONTRIBUTION

6122 UNEMPLOYMENT

Total 6104 FRINGE BENEFITS
6200.1 OFFICE EXPENSES

6200 CONTRIBUTIONS & DONATIONS

6250 SUPPLIES

6251 PRINTING

6252 POSTAGE

6265 EQUIPMENT

6330 TELEPHONE

Total 6200.1 OFFICE EXPENSES
6280 INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

6253 WEBHOSTING

6270 SOFTWARE

6275 IT SERVICES

Total 6280 INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY
6300 OCCUPANCY

6310 RENT

Total 6300 OCCUPANCY
6400 CONTRACTED SERVICES

6125 CONTRACTED SERVICE

6425 LEGAL SERVICES

Total 6400 CONTRACTED SERVICES
6410 PASS THROUGH EXPENSES

6414 COOP WATER RESOURCE MONITORING

6415 WisDOT PLANNING SERVICES

6417 MARKETING AND COMMUNICATIONS
Total 6415 WisDOT PLANNING SERVICES

Total 6410 PASS THROUGH EXPENSES
6426 COMMISSION

6422 COMMISSION PER DIEMS

6423 COMMISSION TRAVEL

Total 6426 COMMISSION

6435 FINANCIAL SERVICES

Sep 2025
6,004
607
1,226
35,967
400

17

53
44,272
239

181
61

1,801
331
2,615

666
739
1,405

4,287
4,287

15,663
1,386
17,049

17,050
1,222
5,000
6,222

23,272

450
42
492

Total

Jan - Sep, 2025 (YTD)
56,128
607
7,148
231,395
400

146
45,270
576
341,670
239

651
1,548
609

39
5,298
1,457
9,841

392
12,043
6,101
18,536

38,603
38,603

70,600
10,393
80,993

110,991
1,222
5,000
6,222

117,213

4,429
304
4,733

Page 10 of 58



Total

Sep 2025 Jan - Sep, 2025 (YTD)
6420 AUDIT 7,850
6430 PAYROLL FEES 412 6,437
6432 FINANCIAL SERVICES 2,530 29,744
Total 6435 FINANCIAL SERVICES 2,942 44,031
6500 TRAVEL AND TRAINING
6130 MEALS 96 292
6150 EMPLOYEE TRAVEL 1,578 8,666
6170 CONFERENCES & MEETINGS 507 5,459
6171 TRAINING 2,008
Total 6500 TRAVEL AND TRAINING 2,182 16,425
6600 OTHER
6172 DUES/MEMBERSHIP/SUBSCRIPTION 64 2,651
6411 EDUC/INFO/OUTREACH 1,124
6440 RECRUITMENT 7
6501 INSURANCE 11,610
6565 AMORITIZATION EXPENSE 34 304
Total 6600 OTHER 98 15,696
Total Expenditures 190,000 1,497,272
NET OPERATING REVENUE (4,915) (29,862)
NET REVENUE $ (4,915) $ (29,862)

Page 11 of 58



Budget vs. Actuals 9 Months Ended

Total
Actual Budget
REVENUE
5000 PROPERTY TAX REVENUE
5001 DANE COUNTY PROP TAX-OTH 906,999 906,999
Total 5000 PROPERTY TAX REVENUE 906,999 906,999
5100 STATE/FEDERAL GRANTS
5101 EPA/DNR Water Planning. 79,737 84,956
5102 EPA/DNR GRANT FUNDS 28,242 29,250
5103 WEM/FEMA/HMGP GRANT FUNDS 76,094 93,750
5202 EPA/DNR WATER PLANNING 0
5403 WisDOT PLAN INTEGRATION 4,510 5,320
Total 5100 STATE/FEDERAL GRANTS 188,583 213,276
5200 PASS THROUGH REVENUE
5201 WisDOT RURAL WORK PROGRAM (456) 4,093
5220 COOP WATER RESOURCE MONITORING 151,686 134,786
Total 5200 PASS THROUGH REVENUE 151,230 138,879
5207 5207 0
5300 FEES REVENUE 0
5301 FEES - SEWER EXTENSIONS 36,600 33,750
5302 FEES-USA/LSA APP REVIEW 12,442 48,750
Total 5300 FEES REVENUE 49,042 82,500
5400 SERVICES REVENUE
5401 LOCAL & REGIONAL PLAN ASSISTANCE 59,198 75,000
Total 5400 SERVICES REVENUE 59,198 75,000
5500 OTHER REVENUE
5208 LAND USE CODE ASSESSMENT 0
5501 INTEREST INCOME 23,611 27,000
5502 MISCELLANEOUS REVENUES 4,366 2,241
5505 WI SALT WISE 102,143 105,000
Total 5500 OTHER REVENUE 130,120 134,241
6570 REVENUE REFUNDS (17,762) (26,643)
Total Revenue 1,467,411 1,524,252
GROSS PROFIT 1,467,411 1,524,252
EXPENDITURES
6100 SALARIES AND LEAVE TIME
6101 DIRECT SALARIES & WAGES 659,061 622,985
6102 COMPENSATED LEAVE TIME 150,470 155,747
Total 6100 SALARIES AND LEAVE TIME 809,531 778,732

Page 12 of 58



Total

Actual Budget
6104 FRINGE BENEFITS
6105 FICA BENEFITS 56,128 58,016
6116 LIFE INSURANCE 607 221
6117 DENTAL INSURANCE 7,148 11,030
6118 HEALTH INSURANCE 231,395 217,276
6119 DISABILITY INSURANCE 400 381
6120 COMMUTE CARDS 146 79
6121 WRS-ER CONTRIBUTION 45,270 53,732
6122 UNEMPLOYMENT 576 750
6124 WORKER'S COMPENSATION IN 2,678
Total 6104 FRINGE BENEFITS 341,670 344,162
6200.1 OFFICE EXPENSES 239
6200 CONTRIBUTIONS & DONATIONS 651 750
6250 SUPPLIES 1,548 2,895
6251 PRINTING 609 1,168
6252 POSTAGE 39 79
6265 EQUIPMENT 5,298 6,694
6330 TELEPHONE 1,457 1,125
6341 ADMINISTRATIVE FEES 320
Total 6200.1 OFFICE EXPENSES 9,841 13,030
6280 INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY
6253 WEBHOSTING 392 276
6270 SOFTWARE 12,043 12,915
6275 IT SERVICES 6,101 7,500
Total 6280 INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 18,536 20,691
6300 OCCUPANCY
6310 RENT 38,603 38,240
Total 6300 OCCUPANCY 38,603 38,240
6400 CONTRACTED SERVICES
6125 CONTRACTED SERVICE 70,600 21,427
6425 LEGAL SERVICES 10,393 3,300
6431 CONSULTING SERVICES 7,500
Total 6400 CONTRACTED SERVICES 80,993 32,227
6410 PASS THROUGH EXPENSES
6414 COOP WATER RESOURCE MONITORING 110,991 145,811
6415 WisDOT PLANNING SERVICES 1,222 4,093
6417 MARKETING AND COMMUNICATIONS 5,000
Total 6415 WisDOT PLANNING SERVICES 6,222 4,093
Total 6410 PASS THROUGH EXPENSES 117,213 149,904

Page 13 of 58



Total

Actual Budget
6426 COMMISSION
6422 COMMISSION PER DIEMS 4,429 6,000
6423 COMMISSION TRAVEL 304 630
Total 6426 COMMISSION 4,733 6,630
6435 FINANCIAL SERVICES
6420 AUDIT 7,850 11,025
6430 PAYROLL FEES 6,437 3,750
6432 FINANCIAL SERVICES 29,744 30,000
Total 6435 FINANCIAL SERVICES 44,031 44,775
6500 TRAVEL AND TRAINING
6130 MEALS 292 680
6150 EMPLOYEE TRAVEL 8,666 9,535
6170 CONFERENCES & MEETINGS 5,459 7,594
6171 TRAINING 2,008 3,750
Total 6500 TRAVEL AND TRAINING 16,425 21,559
6600 OTHER
6172 DUES/MEMBERSHIP/SUBSCRIPTION 2,651 5,132
6411 EDUC/INFO/OUTREACH 1,124 1,969
6440 RECRUITMENT 7 788
6501 INSURANCE 11,610 3,343
6560 DEPRECIATION 0
6565 AMORITIZATION EXPENSE 304 456
Total 6600 OTHER 15,696 11,687
Uncategorized Expense 26,643
Total Expenditures 1,497,272 1,488,281
NET OPERATING REVENUE (29,862) 35,971
NET REVENUE $ (29,862) $35,971

Page 14 of 58



Budget vs. Actuals For Current Month

Total
Actual Budget
REVENUE
5000 PROPERTY TAX REVENUE
5001 DANE COUNTY PROP TAX-OTH 100,778 100,778
Total 5000 PROPERTY TAX REVENUE 100,778 100,778
5100 STATE/FEDERAL GRANTS
5101 EPA/DNR Water Planning. 5,070 9,440
5102 EPA/DNR GRANT FUNDS 3,050 3,250
5103 WEM/FEMA/HMGP GRANT FUNDS 8,464 10,417
5403 WisDOT PLAN INTEGRATION 4,510 591
Total 5100 STATE/FEDERAL GRANTS 21,094 23,697
5200 PASS THROUGH REVENUE
5201 WisDOT RURAL WORK PROGRAM 1,505 455
5220 COOP WATER RESOURCE MONITORING 22,276 14,976
Total 5200 PASS THROUGH REVENUE 23,781 15,431
5300 FEES REVENUE
5301 FEES - SEWER EXTENSIONS 5,600 3,750
5302 FEES-USA/LSA APP REVIEW 5,417
Total 5300 FEES REVENUE 5,600 9,167
5400 SERVICES REVENUE
5401 LOCAL & REGIONAL PLAN ASSISTANCE 22,868 8,333
Total 5400 SERVICES REVENUE 22,868 8,333
5500 OTHER REVENUE
5208 LAND USE CODE ASSESSMENT 0
5501 INTEREST INCOME 3,148 3,000
5502 MISCELLANEOUS REVENUES 6 249
5505 WI SALT WISE 7,810 11,667
Total 5500 OTHER REVENUE 10,964 14,916
6570 REVENUE REFUNDS (2,960)
Total Revenue 185,085 169,361
GROSS PROFIT 185,085 169,361
EXPENDITURES
6100 SALARIES AND LEAVE TIME
6101 DIRECT SALARIES & WAGES 70,913 69,221
6102 COMPENSATED LEAVE TIME 20,474 17,305
Total 6100 SALARIES AND LEAVE TIME 91,387 86,526
6104 FRINGE BENEFITS
6105 FICA BENEFITS 6,004 6,446

Page 15 of 58



6116 LIFE INSURANCE

6117 DENTAL INSURANCE
6118 HEALTH INSURANCE
6119 DISABILITY INSURANCE
6120 COMMUTE CARDS

6121 WRS-ER CONTRIBUTION
6122 UNEMPLOYMENT

6124 WORKER'S COMPENSATION IN
Total 6104 FRINGE BENEFITS

6200.1 OFFICE EXPENSES

6200 CONTRIBUTIONS & DONATIONS

6250 SUPPLIES

6251 PRINTING

6252 POSTAGE

6265 EQUIPMENT

6330 TELEPHONE

6341 ADMINISTRATIVE FEES
Total 6200.1 OFFICE EXPENSES

6280 INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

6253 WEBHOSTING
6270 SOFTWARE
6275 IT SERVICES

Total 6280 INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

6300 OCCUPANCY
6310 RENT
Total 6300 OCCUPANCY
6400 CONTRACTED SERVICES
6125 CONTRACTED SERVICE
6425 LEGAL SERVICES
6431 CONSULTING SERVICES
Total 6400 CONTRACTED SERVICES

6410 PASS THROUGH EXPENSES

6414 COOP WATER RESOURCE MONITORING

6415 WisDOT PLANNING SERVICES

6417 MARKETING AND COMMUNICATIONS
Total 6415 WisDOT PLANNING SERVICES
Total 6410 PASS THROUGH EXPENSES

6426 COMMISSION
6422 COMMISSION PER DIEMS

Actual
607
1,226
35,967
400

17

53

44,272
239

181
61

1,801
331

2,615

666
739
1,405

4,287
4,287

15,663
1,386

17,049

17,050
1,222
5,000
6,222

23,272

450

Total

Budget
25
1,226
24,142
42

5,970
83

298
38,240

83
322
130

744
125
36
1,448

31
1,435
833
2,299

4,249
4,249

2,381
367

833
3,581

16,201
455

455
16,656

667

Page 16 of 58



Total

Actual Budget
6423 COMMISSION TRAVEL 42 70
Total 6426 COMMISSION 492 737
6435 FINANCIAL SERVICES
6420 AUDIT 1,225
6430 PAYROLL FEES 412 417
6432 FINANCIAL SERVICES 2,530 3,333
Total 6435 FINANCIAL SERVICES 2,942 4,975
6500 TRAVEL AND TRAINING
6130 MEALS 96 76
6150 EMPLOYEE TRAVEL 1,578 1,059
6170 CONFERENCES & MEETINGS 507 844
6171 TRAINING 417
Total 6500 TRAVEL AND TRAINING 2,182 2,395
6600 OTHER
6172 DUES/MEMBERSHIP/SUBSCRIPTION 64 570
6411 EDUC/INFO/OUTREACH 219
6440 RECRUITMENT 88
6501 INSURANCE 371
6560 DEPRECIATION 0
6565 AMORITIZATION EXPENSE 34 51
Total 6600 OTHER 98 1,299
Uncategorized Expense 2,960
Total Expenditures 190,000 165,365
NET OPERATING REVENUE (4,915) 3,997
NET REVENUE $ (4,915) $3,997

Page 17 of 58



A/R Aging Summary

Ayers Associates, Inc.
City of Evansville
245402 - Evansville Bike-Ped Plan
Total City of Evansville
City of Janesville
City of Madison Engineering Division
Clean Water Minnesota
D’Onofrio Kottke and Associates
Dane County Land Conservation
Department of Planning, Community and Economic Development
Dodge County Highway Department
Douglas County - CO
Homburg Contractors, Inc.
Jewell Associates Engineers, Inc.
JSD PROFESSIONAL SER
Maryland Department Of the Environment
Milwaukee Riverkeeper
MSA Professional Services, Inc.
Outagamie County Highway
PINNACLE ENGINEERING

Professional Engineering, LLC

Rock County Planning, Economic & Community Development Agency

245401 - Rock County Comp Plan

Total Rock County Planning, Economic & Community Development Agency

Current
1,000

2,031
2,031

500
1,400
1,000

300

1,000
5,000

10,308
10,308

1-30 31-60 61-90 91 andover Total
1,000

0

2,031

2,031

500

1,200 2,600
1,000

(800) (800)
85,075 85,075
2,869 2,869
1,500 1,500
300

400 400
400 400
800 800
1,000

5,000

1,400 1,400
500 500
400 400
1,000 1,000
0

10,308

10,308

Page 18 of 58



Snyder & Associates, Inc.

Town of Berry
255101 - T-Berry Comp Plan Update
Total Town of Berry

Town of Springfield

Town of Westport

VANDE HEY

Vierbicher

Village of Black Earth

Village of Deforest

WI Department of Military Affairs
Division of Emergency Management
Total WI Department of Military Affairs

WI Department of Natural Resources

Wyser Engineering, LLC

TOTAL

Current
600

1,854
1,854

1,200

1,200
$27,393

800

56,550
56,550
11,900

$68,450

31-60

$0

61-90 91 and over
1,800

775
400
800
800
8,000
3,070

11,900
400

Total
2,400
0
1,854
1,854
775
400
800
2,800
8,000
3,070
0
56,550
56,550
23,800
1,600

$0 $123,489 $219,332

Page 19 of 58



CARPC EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE AGENDA COVER SHEET November 10, 2025
Item 05

Re: Recommendation to Approve — 2026 Cost Allocation Plan (actionable item)

Requested Action:

Motion to recommend approval of 2026 Cost Allocation Plan

Background:

The purpose of the Cost Allocation Plan is to summarize the methods and procedures that CARPC uses to
allocate costs to various programs, grants, contracts, and agreements. Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance), establishes the principles for determining costs of grants, contracts,
and other agreements with the Federal Government. Direct costs are those that can be identified
specifically with a particular final cost objective. Indirect costs are those that have been incurred for
common or joint objectives and cannot be readily identified with a particular final cost objective. Only costs
that are allowable, in accordance with the Cost Principles, are allocated to benefitting programs.

Staff Comments:

The Cost Allocation Plan establishes CARPC’s indirect and overhead cost rates. CARPC uses these cost
rates to set bill rates for staff time for services including sewer service area amendment reviews and
planning services. The Executive Director and Administrative Services Manager prepared this plan with
assistance from our accounting firm, using our 2024 financial results as the basis for these rates.

The new indirect and overhead rates for 2026, based on 2024 data, and the current (2025) rates are
presented here:

2026 2025
Administrative Overhead 30.96% 31.93%
Indirect Overhead 39.63% 43.98%
Fringe Benefits 65.13% 63.90%
Total Fringe & Indirect Rate 135.72% 139.81%

Attachments:

1. 2026 Cost Allocation Plan

Staff Contact:

Jason Valerius

Executive Director
jasonv@capitalarearpc.org
(608) 474-6010

Next Steps:

Submit the CARPC 2026 Cost Allocation Plan to WisDOT as part of the Rural Transportation Work
Program. Begin using the new indirect cost rate effective 01/01/25 to bill for future staff time spent on
billable projects.

Page 20 of 58


mailto:jasonv@capitalarearpc.org

CAPITAL AREA RPC .‘.‘

WY

CAPITAL AREA REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION

2026 COST ALLOCATION PLAN

November 5, 2025

Page 21 of 58


mailto:info@lcapitalarearpc.org

Capital Area Regional Planning Commission 2026 Cost Allocation Plan

Purpose

The purpose of this Cost Allocation Plan is to summarize the methods and procedures that this
organization will use to allocate costs to various programs, grants, contracts, and agreements.

Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance), establishes the
principles for determining costs of grants, contracts, and other agreements with the Federal
Government. Capital Area Regional Planning Commission’s (CARPC’s) Cost Allocation Plan treats
all allowable costs as direct costs except general administration and general expenses.

Direct costs are those that can be identified specifically with a particular final cost objective.
Indirect costs are those that have been incurred for common or joint objectives and cannot be
readily identified with a particular final cost objective.

Only costs that are allowable, in accordance with the Cost Principles, will be allocated to
benefiting programs by CARPC.

This proposal is based on CARPC’s actual costs reconcilable to the audited financial statements for
its calendar year ending December 31, 2024. The general approach of CARPC in allocating costs to
specific grants, contracts and fees are as follows:

A. All allowable direct costs are charged directly to programs, grants, contracts, etc.

B. Allowable fringe benefits including compensated absence time, FICA, unemployment
insurance, worker’s compensation, health insurance, retirement system contributions, life
and disability insurance, and other fringe benefits are pooled and allocated to programs,

grants, etc., using direct labor hours as the base.

C. All other allowable indirect expense costs are pooled and allocated to programs, grants,
etc., using direct labor hours as the base.

Page 22 of 58



Capital Area Regional Planning Commission 2026 Cost Allocation Plan

Allocation of Costs

The following information summarizes the procedures that are used by CARPC:

A.

Compensation for Personal Services — Documented with timesheets showing time
distribution for all employees and allocated based on time spent on each program or
grant. Salaries and wages and benefits are charged directly to the program for which work
has been done.

Insurance — Insurance needed for a particular program is charged directly to the program
requiring coverage. Other insurance coverage that benefits all programs is allocated to the
indirect expenses category.

Professional Services Costs (such as consultants) — Costs that benefit a specific program
are charged directly to the program requiring the service. Costs that benefit all programs
are allocated to the indirect expense category.

Audit Costs — Annual audit fees will be allocated to the indirect expense category.

Postage — Allocated based on use. Postage expenses are charged directly to programs to
the extent possible. Costs that benefit all programs are allocated to the indirect expense
category.

Printing — Allocated based on usage. Printing costs are charged directly to programs to the
extent possible. Costs that benefit all programs are allocated to the indirect expense
category.

Supplies — Expenses are charged directly to programs to the extent possible. Costs that
benefit all programs are allocated to the indirect expense category.

Equipment/Depreciation — CARPC depreciates equipment when the initial acquisition cost

exceeds $5,000. Items below $5,000 are reflected in the equipment category and expenses
in the current year and are charged directly to programs to the extent possible. Costs that

benefit all programs are allocated to the indirect expense category.

Training/Conferences/Seminars — Costs that benefit one program are charged directly to
the program. Costs that benefit all programs will be allocated to the indirect expense
category.

Travel Costs — All travel costs (local and out-of-town) are charged directly to the program

for which the travel was incurred. Travel costs that benefit all programs are allocated to
the indirect expense category.

Page 23 of 58



Capital Area Regional Planning Commission 2026 Cost Allocation Plan

K. Facilities Expenses (includes rent, Information Management, utilities, maintenance) —
Facilities costs related to indirect expense activities are allocated to the indirect expense
category.

L. Communications - Costs that benefit one program are charged directly to the program.
Costs that benefit all programs will be allocated to the indirect category.

M. Other costs (including membership dues, licenses, fees, etc.) — Expenses are charged
directly to programs that benefit from the expense/service. Expenses that benefit all
programs are allocated to the indirect expense category.

N. Unallowable Costs — Costs that are unallowable in accordance with Part 200 — Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards,
including commissioner travel and per diem, alcoholic beverages, lobbying, bad debts,
contributions, entertainment, fines, and penalties are not included in the calculation of the
indirect rate.

Indirect Salary Narrative

Executive Director charges time spent on support to the Commission, financial review,
personnel matters, and project management.

Administrative Services Manager charges time spent on financial management,
procurement, support to the Commission, personnel matters, employee benefit
administration, contract administration, website updates, and report preparation and
production.

Other Staff charge time spent in all staff meetings and performance reviews.

Page 24 of 58



Capital Area Regional Planning Commission 2026 Cost Allocation Plan

ORGANIZATIONAL CHART

(Effective January 1, 2026) (¥

Budget & Personnel Panel

— Capital Area Regional Planning Commission
(BPP)®@

Executive Committee
Personnel Committee

Ad-Hoc Water Quality
Committee

Executive Director

Agency Staff

Administrative Services Manager
Senior Community Planner & Deputy Director®
Senior Environmental Engineer
Senior Community Planner

Senior Environmental Resources Planner

WI Salt Wise Program Manager
Environmental Resources Planners (two)

Environmental Engineer
Community Planner
Marketing and Communication Specialist'®

Notes:
(1) This version incorporates the designation of a Deputy Director in 2026
(2) The BPP has the power to approve the CARPC budget and levy and hire or fire the Executive
Director, as described in Article IV of the CARPC Bylaws
(3) Title VI Officer
(4) Greater Madison MPO staff, under contract to CARPC for 25% time

Page 25 of 58



Capital Area Regional Planning Commission 2026 Cost Allocation Plan

CERTIFICATE OF INDIRECT COST RATE

This is to certify that | have reviewed the indirect cost rate proposal prepared and submitted
herewith and to the best of my knowledge and belief:

(1) All costs included in this proposal, dated November 5, 2025, to establish indirect,
administrative overhead, and fringe cost billing rates for 2025 are allowable in accordance
with the requirements of the Federal award(s) to which they apply and Title 2 U. S. Code of
Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards. This proposal does not include any costs which are
unallowable as identified in the applicable federal cost principles.

(2) All costs included in this proposal are properly allocable to Federal awards based on a
beneficial or causal relationship between the expenses incurred and the agreements to which
they are allocated in accordance with applicable requirements. Further, the same costs that
have been treated as indirect costs have not been claimed as direct costs. Similar types of
costs have been accounted for consistently and the Federal Government will be notified of any
accounting changes that would affect the predetermined rate.

(3) Rates calculated within the proposal used a direct cost base type of direct salaries and wages.
The indirect cost rate is 39.63%. The fringe rate is 65.13%. The administrative overhead rate is
30.96%. The total of these three rates is 135.72%. The calculations were based on actual costs
from fiscal year 2024, to obtain these federal billing rates for fiscal year 2025 until a new Cost
Allocation Plan is adopted.

(4) All documentation supporting the indirect cost rate identified above will be retained by
CARPC. This rate should be reviewed and validated as part of the CARPC’s annual financial
audit.

Subject to the provisions of the Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act of 1986 (31 USC 3801 et seq.),
the False Claims Act (18 USC 287 and 31 USC 3729), and the False Statement Act (18 USC 1001), |
declare to the best of my knowledge that the foregoing is true and correct.

Governmental Unit: Capital Area Regional Planning Commission

Signature: ﬂgf\ %‘7

Name of Official: Jason Valerius
Title: Executive Director
Date of Execution: November 5, 2025

Page 26 of 58



Capital Area Regional Planning Commission 2026 Cost Allocation Plan

CAPITAL AREA REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION

SCHEDULE 1
COMPUTATION OF FRINGE BENEFIT RATE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

Fringe Benefits:

Payroll Taxes 77,854
Health Insurance 195,641
Dental Insurance 11,287
Group Life Insurance 309
Disability Insurance 162
Compensated Absences / Paid
Time Off 175,259
Retirement 60,705
Worker's Compensation Insurance 6,802
Unemployment Compensation 532
Fringe Benefits 29
Moving Expense -
Total Fringe Benefits $ 528,581
Project Salaries 619,719
Administrative Salaries 191,889
Total Labor $ 811,608

Total Fringe

Benefits $ 528,581

Total Labor $ 811,608 65.13%

Total

Salaries 986,868

Unallowable

Salaries 2,086

Total

Salaries 988,953

Page 27 of 58



Capital Area Regional Planning Commission 2026 Cost Allocation Plan

CAPITAL AREA REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION
SCHEDULE 2
COMPUTATION OF INDIRECT OVERHEAD RATE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

Indirect Overhead:

Contracted Services $ 21,172
Meals, Travel 16,355
Conference and Training 7,158
Dues, Membership,
Subscriptions 9,168
Contributions & Donations 55
Supplies 5,851
Printing 1,783
Postage 30
Webhosting 96
Equipment 6,716
Software 15,873
IT Services 10,772
Rent 50,352
Telephone 1,069
Administration and Payroll
Fees 5,665
Outreach and Education 250
Pass Through - Coop Water Resource, Transport Plan -
Audit 10,450
Commission Per Diem and Travel (unallowable & not included
here) -
Legal Services 3,298
Consulting Services 32,207
Financial Services 43,699
Recruitment -
Insurance 3,180
Depreciation and Amortization 405

Total Indirect

Expenses $ 245,604

Total Indirect

Expenses $ 245,604
Total Project
Salaries $ 619,719 39.63%

Page 28 of 58



Capital Area Regional Planning Commission 2025 Cost Allocation Plan

CAPITAL AREA REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION

SCHEDULE 3

COMPUTATION OF ADMINISTRATIVE OVERHEAD RATE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

Administrative Overhead:
Administrative Salaries

Total Administrative
Salaries

Administrative

Overhead
Project
Salaries

$ 191,889

$ 191,889

$ 191,889

$ 619,719

30.96%

Summary of the Rates / Total

Administrative Overhead

(Schedule 3)
Indirect Overhead
(Schedule 2)
Fringe Benefits
(Schedule 1)

Total Fringe & Indirect
Rate

30.96%
39.63%

65.13%

135.72%

Page 29 of 58



CARPC EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE AGENDA COVER SHEET November 10, 2025
Item 06

Re: Recommendation to Authorize Executive Director to Execute Agreements with the Towns of Berry,

Blue Mounds, Bristol, Springfield, Sun Prairie — 2026-2027 Mapping and Data Services (actionable
item)

Requested Action:

Recommendation to authorize the Executive Director to execute the agreements

Background:

The Agency enters into annual agreements with five towns that have opted out of Dane County zoning.
Under the agreement, CARPC staff provides online mapping of the towns’ zoning as zoning amendments

are requested. The agreement also enables the towns to contract for other mapping and data assistance
as needed.

Staff Comments:

The terms of the agreements remain substantially the same as those previously adopted. The agreements
extend services to the end of 2027. Services will continue to be provided at the actual hourly salary plus
fringe, direct, and indirect costs.

One notable change to the contracts is cost recovery for on-going and periodical maintenance and
updates to the databases and web applications used to provide the zoning maps to the opt-out towns.
These updates ensure the maps retain their functionality and the data used is accurate.

Attachments:

1. Example CARPC Agreement with a Town for Planning Services

Staff Contact:

Sean Higgins

Senior Community Planner
seanh@capitalarearpc.org
(608) 474-6018

Next Steps:

Consent approval by Commission and execution of agreements.

Page 30 of 58


mailto:seanh@capitalarearpc.org

T
AY

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE TOWN OF AND THE CAPITAL AREA
REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION FOR PLANNING SERVICES

Parties: This agreement (“Agreement”) is by and between the Town of , [mailing address],
hereafter “Town” and Capital Area Regional Planning Commission, 100 State St, Ste 400, Madison, WI
53703-2573, hereafter “CARPC” (each, a “Party” and collectively, the “Parties”).

Term: The term of this Agreement is January 1, 2026, through December 31, 2027. This Agreement shall
only be renewed by written agreement between the Parties.

Scope of Services: CARPC will provide maps and data (“Services”) including:

e Zoning based on a parcel number table or areas not matching tax parcel boundaries
e School district

e Elevation

e  Future land use plan

e Existing land use

e Listing of property owners within a certain distance

e Base map

e Environmentally sensitive area (floodplain, wetland, steep slopes)

e Data and maps to support the Farmland Preservation program in a Town
e Routine maintenance of zoning maps and corresponding data

e Other data services available from CARPC requested by the Town

CARPC staff will make data available through a web browser interface. Requests for Services in any
media other than online may incur additional charges.

Requests for Service: To obtain Services, the Town will provide a written request to CARPC that
describes the desired data and maps and includes an approximation map that delineates the location of
the area to be rezoned and the district into which it is being zoned.

Page 31 of 58



L
S4

When the Town completes a rezoning, it will provide to CARPC the following:

a. Ato-scale map of the area that is to be rezoned along with a letter from the zoning
administrator, with whom the Town contracts for zoning services, indicating the area has been
rezoned; AND

b. A copy of the minutes from the Town Board from the meeting at which the zoning change was
approved, or a letter signed by the Town Clerk stating that the zoning change was approved.

Upon receipt of the above, CARPC will update Town maps as needed to reflect the zoning changes.

If, due to unforeseen circumstances, CARPC is unable to provide requested Services within the agreed
upon time period, CARPC will notify the Town in writing and provide a revised date of delivery of data
and maps.

The Town may cancel its request for Services in writing with three (3) business days’ notice at any time,
after which CARPC will invoice the Town for hours of Services performed up to the date of cancellation.

Payment: Services will be provided at the actual hourly salary plus fringe, direct, and indirect costs. (See
attached billing rate sheet.) Additionally, any large format printing will be invoiced at twenty dollars
(520.00) per linear foot. CARPC will invoice the Town following receipt by the Town of completed
Services. CARPC is authorized to automatically invoice the Town for any Services rendered with a cost
less than or equal to one hundred-fifty dollars ($150.00). For Services that are estimated to cost more
than one hundred-fifty dollars ($150.00), CARPC will send the Town an estimate of staff hours required,
length of time to complete the request, and cost to the Town. Upon receipt of a written acceptance by
the Town, CARPC will prepare and deliver the Services.

On a quarterly basis, CARPC will invoice the Town for its share of costs associated with farmland
preservation certifications divided evenly amongst the towns utilizing these services.

On a quarterly basis, CARPC will invoice the Town for its share of routine data and map maintenance
divided evenly amongst the towns utilizing mapping and data services.

Payment of invoices by the Town are due to CARPC within thirty (30) days of receipt by the Town of an
invoice. If the Town has any outstanding invoices that are more than thirty (30) days past due, the Town
will need to pay the balance due before CARPC performs any future work for the Town.

Term: This agreement is effective when signed by both CARPC and the Town. It expires December 31,
2027. Either party may withdraw at any time from this MOU with thirty (30) days prior written notice.

Page 32 of 58



L
S4

Non-Discrimination: During the term of this Agreement, the Parties agree to abide by their respective
policies of non-discrimination and affirmative action. Further, the Parties agree that this agreement
does not subject either party to the other’s jurisdiction for the determination of such matters.

Limitation of Liability: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Agreement or
provided for under any applicable law, in no event is CARPC liable in contract, tort (including negligence)
or otherwise for any special, incidental, or consequential damages arising out of or relating to the
services provided pursuant to this Agreement. To the fullest extent allowed by law, CARPC's liability to
the Town or any other persons or entities is limited to the amounts received by CARPC in payment for
the services rendered under the terms of this Agreement. Furthermore, nothing contained within this
Agreement is intended to be a waiver or estoppel of CARPC or its insurer to rely upon the limitations,
defenses, and immunities contained within the Wisconsin Statutes, including, without limitation, Wis.
Stat. § 893.80.

Severability: The invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability of any provision of this Agreement shall not
affect the validity, legality, or enforceability of any other provision of this Agreement, which shall remain
in full force and effect.

Indemnification: To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Town agrees to save, indemnify, hold
harmless CARPC, its officers, directors, employees, representatives, and agents from and against any
claims, actions, proceedings, losses, judgments, penalties, fines, damages, liabilities, or costs and
expenses (including reasonable attorneys’ fees) based upon or arising out of The Town’s usage of the
Services provided by CARPC under this Agreement.

Independent Contractor: It is the intention of the parties that CARPC shall be an independent contractor
in the performance of the work, and that nothing contained herein shall be construed to be inconsistent
with CARPC's status as an independent contractor. It is understood that the fees or any other amounts
the Town pays CARPC under this Agreement shall not be considered salary for pension purposes, and
CARPC will not entitled to any of the other fringe and supplemental benefits of the Town, nor will the
Town withhold any social security (FICA) or similar contributions from CARPC’s fee. CARPC is responsible
for the payment of all payroll taxes or contributions to its personnel performing services hereunder and
shall be liable for failure to do so.

Governing Law; Jurisdiction. This Agreement shall be governed, construed, and enforced in accordance
with the laws of the State of Wisconsin, without regard to its conflict of laws rules.

Page 33 of 58



L
AV

Arbitration: In the event of any dispute, claim, question, or disagreement arising from or relating to this
Agreement or the breach thereof, the Parties hereto shall use their best efforts to settle the dispute,
claim, question, or disagreement. To this effect, they shall consult and negotiate with each other in good
faith and, recognizing their mutual interests, attempt to reach a just and equitable solution satisfactory
to both parties. If they do not reach such solution within a period of sixty (60) days, then, upon notice by
either party to the other, all disputes, claims, questions, or differences shall be finally settled by
arbitration administered by the American Arbitration Association (“AAA”) in accordance with the
provisions of its Commercial Arbitration Rules. As an alternative to AAA, the Parties may elect to have
the matter resolved by a single arbitrator that they mutually select. The place of arbitration shall be
Madison, Wisconsin. Judgment on the award rendered by the arbitrators may be entered in any court
having jurisdiction thereof.

Entire Agreement: This Agreement supersedes any previous agreement or undertakings. It may not be
modified except in writing executed by both Parties.

Counterparts: This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to be
an original, but all of which, taken together, shall constitute one and the same agreement.

IN WITNESS THEREOF, the Parties have caused this Agreement to be executed by individuals and officers
duly authorized on the dates noted below.

CAPITAL AREA REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION TOWN OF

By: By:
Jason Valerius, AICP NAME
Executive Director TITLE
Capital Area Regional Planning Commission Town of

Date: Date:

Page 34 of 58



CAPITAL AREA RPC
100 State St, Ste 400, Madison, WI 53703-2573

ph: 608.474.6017
info@capitalarearpc.org

l
\v

Page 35 of 58



CARPC EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE AGENDA COVER SHEET November 10, 2025
Item 07

Re: Recommendation to authorize Executive Director to sign — Joint Planning Assistance Services
Agreement to provide assistance to the City of Fitchburg and Village of Oregon (actionable item)

Requested Action:

Motion to recommend authorization to sign Joint Planning Assistance Services Agreement

Background:

CARPC assists local governments with planning support and other services, often on a fee-for-service
basis, guided in project selection by our 2024 Strategic Plan and a Services Guidelines flowchart.

Staff Comments:

Executive Director Valerius has been speaking to the City of Fitchburg and the Village of Oregon for
several months about facilitating conversations around the development of lands in the City of Fitchburg
that require utility service from the adjacent Village of Oregon. This agreement is the result of those
discussions. Because the work is in service to a municipal boundary agreement and will benefit multiple
communities as an implementation activity of the Regional Development Framework, we have elected to
offer discounted rates (75% of the full-loaded rates) for this work.

Attachments:

1. Proposed agreement

Staff Contact:

Jason Valerius

Executive Director
jasonv@capitalarearpc.org
(608) 474-6010

Next Steps:

Consent approval by Commission and execution of agreement

Page 36 of 58



mailto:jasonv@capitalarearpc.org

‘

\ 4

AGREEMENT BETWEEN CITY OF FITCHBURG, VILLAGE OF OREGON
AND THE CAPITAL AREA REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION
FOR JOINT PLANNING ASSISTANCE SERVICES

Parties: This agreement (“Agreement”) is by and between the City of Fitchburg (5520 Lacy Road,
Fitchburg, W1 53711) and the Village of Oregon (101 Alpine Pkwy, Oregon, WI 53575), hereafter “The
Communities” and Capital Area Regional Planning Commission, 100 State St, Ste 400, Madison, WI
53703-2573, hereafter “CARPC” (each, a “Party” and collectively, the “Parties”).

Term: The term of this Agreement is December 1, 2025, through approximately May 30, 2026. This
Agreement shall only be renewed or revised by written agreement between the Parties.

Scope of Services: This agreement is for work associated with development planning for the lands in the
City of Fitchburg adjacent to the Village of Oregon. Two phases of assistance are included in this
agreement — Phase 1 will be stakeholder discussion facilitation and Phase 2 (optional) will be mapping of
site characteristics and future land use to inform an Urban Service Area amendment proposal. The scope
is described in more detail in the proposal document, attached and incorporated as Attachment A.
CARPC shall not proceed with, nor be compensated for, any work related to Phase 2 until it has received
explicit written authorization to proceed from both the City of Fitchburg Administrator and the Village of
Oregon Administrator.

Payment: Total cost for the required elements to be provided by CARPC will not exceed $4,200 for Phase
1 or $3,200 for Phase 2. CARPC will invoice the City of Fitchburg quarterly for the hours of work
completed at a rate of $120/hour for all work. The City will provide the invoice to the Village, which will
reimburse the City for 50% of the cost. Payment from the City to CARPC will be due within 30 days of the
date of the invoice. A more detailed description of the cost of services is outlined in Attachment A.

Non-Discrimination: During the term of this Agreement, the Parties agree to abide by their respective
policies of non-discrimination and affirmative action. Further, the Parties agree that this agreement
does not subject either party to the other’s jurisdiction for the determination of such matters.

Limitation of Liability: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Agreement or
provided for under any applicable law, in no event is CARPC liable in contract, tort (including negligence)
or otherwise for any special, incidental, or consequential damages arising out of or relating to the
services provided pursuant to this Agreement. To the fullest extent allowed by law, CARPC's liability to
the Communities or any other persons or entities is limited to the amounts received by CARPC in
payment for the services rendered under the terms of this Agreement. Furthermore, nothing contained
within this Agreement is intended to be a waiver or estoppel of CARPC or its insurer to rely upon the
limitations, defenses, and immunities contained within the Wisconsin Statutes, including, without
limitation, Wis.Stat. § 893.80.

Page 37 of 58



Severability: The invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability of any provision of this Agreement shall not
affect the validity, legality, or enforceability of any other provision of this Agreement, which shall remain
in full force and effect.

Indemnification: To the fullest extent permitted by law, each community agrees to save, indemnify,
hold harmless CARPC, its officers, directors, employees, representatives, and agents from and against
any claims, actions, proceedings, losses, judgments, penalties, fines, damages, liabilities, or costs and
expenses (including reasonable attorneys’ fees) based upon or arising out of the community’s own
usage of the Services provided by CARPC under this Agreement.

Independent Contractor: It is the intention of the parties that CARPC shall be an independent contractor
in the performance of the work, and that nothing contained herein shall be construed to be inconsistent
with CARPC's status as an independent contractor. It is understood that the fees or any other amounts
The Communities pay CARPC under this Agreement shall not be considered salary for pension purposes,
and CARPC will not be entitled to any of the other fringe and supplemental benefits of The
Communities, nor will The Communities withhold any social security (FICA) or similar contributions from
CARPC's fee. CARPC is responsible for the payment of all payroll taxes or contributions to its personnel
performing services hereunder and shall be liable for failure to do so.

Governing Law; Jurisdiction. This Agreement shall be governed, construed, and enforced in accordance
with the laws of the State of Wisconsin, without regard to its conflict of laws rules.

Dispute Resolution: In the event of any dispute, claim, question, or disagreement arising from or
relating to this Agreement or the breach thereof, the Parties hereto shall use their best efforts to settle
the dispute, claim, question, or disagreement. To this effect, they shall consult and negotiate with each
other in good faith and, recognizing their mutual interests, attempt to reach a just and equitable
solution satisfactory to both parties. If they do not reach such solution within a period of sixty (60)
days, then, upon notice by either party to the other, all disputes, claims, questions, or differences shall
be finally settled by litigation. Any action arising out of a dispute between the parties shall be brought
in the state courts of Wisconsin located in Dane County. Each party submits to the jurisdiction and
venue of these courts for purposes of such action, and each accepts service of process by first class
mail, certified or registered.

Entire Agreement: This Agreement supersedes any previous agreement or undertakings. It may not be
modified except in writing executed by both Parties.

Counterparts: This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to be
an original, but all of which, taken together, shall constitute one and the same agreement.

Page 38 of 58



IN WITNESS THEREOF, the Parties have caused this Agreement to be executed by individuals and officers
duly authorized on the dates noted below.

CAPITAL AREA REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION CITY OF FITCHBURG
By: By:
Jason Valerius Name:
Executive Director Title:

Capital Area Regional Planning Commission
P 8 8 City of Fitchburg

Date: Date:
VILLAGE OF OREGON
By:
Name:
Title:
Village of Oregon
Date:

Page 39 of 58



T
\ 4

November 5, 2025

Proposal to the City of Fitchburg and Village of Oregon for Joint Planning Assistance

OVERVIEW

The City of Fitchburg and Village of Oregon have been talking for decades about the possibility of
coordinated development of lands in the southeast corner of the City. These lands, roughly 500 acres of
farmland without many natural impediments to development, are in a prime location between the
interchange of US Hwy 14 and County Highway MM and the northern entrance to the Village. But
development requires coordination between the City and Village on land use preferences and the
provision of urban services. With the possibility of new investment in this area by the Oregon Area
School District and the Wisconsin Department of Corrections, the time feels right to bring everyone to
the table for discussions about how development can proceed here.

The Capital Area Regional Planning Commission (CARPC) exists to help communities work together to
address challenges and opportunities that cross boundaries. This is a proposal for planning assistance,
developed through discussions with City Administrator Chad Brecklin and Village Administrator Martin
Shanks, whereby CARPC staff will facilitate a series of meetings and offer next step suggestions based on
the conversations that result. The anticipated next step is negotiation of an intergovernmental
agreement that will set the terms that enable development, though these conversations will seek
feedback both on policy (what should happen on these lands?) and process (how do we get there?).

A second phase of assistance is also anticipated, wherein CARPC assists with preliminary development
feasibility analyses and basic land use illustrations to inform an Urban Service Area Amendment
proposal in 2026. Proceeding with this assistance will be contingent upon the findings in the first phase.

PROPOSAL
Staff

The Phase 1 scope described here will be completed primarily by Jason Valerius, AICP, with support from
staff for CARPC, City and Village. Jason has been Executive Director of CARPC since January 2024 and

Page 40 of 58



was a planning consultant with MSA Professional Services for 19 years prior to that. He is experienced in
land development and intergovernmental agreement negotiations.

The Phase 2 scope will involve Jason and other CARPC planning staff.

Scope

The planning area in consideration is not firmly established but is generally described by the illustration
below — lands west of US 14 in the City of Fitchburg.

Phase 1

We suggest a series of discussions about the future development of these lands, in which we will ask
stakeholders to describe their preferences for if and how the land is developed and also their thoughts
about the planning process — who needs to have a voice in the process and what are the critical issues
that should be addressed in any next-step plan or agreement?

This initial process will culminate with a joint meeting of City and Village officials at which CARPC will
present a summary of what we learned and next step recommendations. No action will be taken at this
meeting — it will be an opportunity for questions and discussion about how to proceed.

Recommended meetings:
e City of Fitchburg — Key staff (Administrator, 2-3 others) and elected/appointed officials (Mayor
and 1-2 alders)

Page 41 of 58



e Village of Oregon — Key staff (Administrator, 2-3 others) and elected/appointed officials (Village
President and chair or member of Public Works Committee and Planning Commission)
e Property Owners (up to 6 meetings)

Meeting coordination:
e CARPC will provide a brief letter of introduction to be used in outreach to the property owners
e  (City staff will assist with the contact and scheduling for the private landowner meetings
o Village staff will assist with the contact and scheduling for the DOC and school district meetings

Deliverables:
e CARPC will provide, as a written report, summaries of each of the meetings and
recommendations regarding the next steps in the planning process.
e CARPC will present the findings at a joint City-Village meeting

Phase 2

In Phase 2, if the City and Village elect to proceed, CARPC will prepare basic future land use alternatives
that can be used in an Urban Service Area Amendment application. We will work with staff to identify
land use types and intensities that plausibly accommodate the range of development options that may
be considered in later planning and development processes, informed in part by stakeholder
preferences identified in Phase 1.

Estimated Schedule

e December 2025 — Stakeholder contacts and meeting scheduling

e January 2026 — Stakeholder meetings

e February 2026 — Summary document and joint City-Village meeting
e February-April 2026 — Phase 2 USA Amendment maps (if authorized)

e Estimated CARPC time commitment: 37 hours
e Hourly rate: $120 (discounted for intergovernmental cooperation support)
e Time and materials, not to exceed amount: $4,500

Phase 2 (if authorized):

e Estimated CARPC time commitment: 30 hours
e Hourly rate estimate: $106 (blended rate of multiple staff — regular billable rates will be applied)
e Time and materials, not to exceed amount: $3,200

Page 42 of 58



Invoices will be issued to and paid by the City of Fitchburg; the Village of Oregon will reimburse the City
for 50% of the cost.

Capital Area Regional Planning Commission

Jason Valerius
Executive Director

Attachment: Agreement Between City of Fitchburg, Village of Oregon and the Capital Area Regional
Planning Commission for Joint Planning Assistance Services

Page 43 of 58



CARPC EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE AGENDA COVER SHEET November 10, 2025
Item 08

Re: Recommendation to authorize Executive Director to sign — 2026 Audit Services Agreement with
Johnson Block to conduct the 2025 audit (actionable item)

Requested Action:

Motion to recommend authorization to sign 2026 Audit Services Agreement

Background:

CARPC contracts for an outside audit of its accounting and financial status each year to validate that data
and the underlying accounting processes

Staff Comments:

None

Attachments:

1. Engagement Letter

Staff Contact:

Jason Valerius

Executive Director
jasonv@capitalarearpc.org
(608) 474-6010

Next Steps:

Execute agreement

Page 44 of 58


mailto:jasonv@capitalarearpc.org

JBC

CPAs

October 28, 2025

Capital Area Regional Planning Commission
Jason Valerius, Executive Director

100 State Street, Suite 400

Madison, Wisconsin 53703

The following represents our understanding of the services we will provide the Capital Area Regional
Planning Commission.

You have requested that we audit the financial statements of the business-type activities of the Capital Area
Regional Planning Commission, as of December 31, 2025, and for the year then ended and the related notes,
which collectively comprise the Capital Area Regional Planning Commission’s basic financial statements.
We are pleased to confirm our acceptance and our understanding of this audit engagement by means of this
letter.

The objectives of our audit of the financial statements are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but
is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAS), will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements, including omissions, can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would
influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, as promulgated by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) require that certain required supplementary
information be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a
part of the basic financial statements, is required by the GASB, who considers it to be an essential part of
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. As part of our engagement, we will apply certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information (RSI) in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. These limited procedures will consist primarily of inquiries of management regarding
their methods of measurement and presentation, and comparing the information for consistency with
management’s responses to our inquiries. We will not express an opinion or provide any form of assurance
on the RSI. The following RSI is required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.. This RSI will be subjected to certain limited procedures but will not be audited:

1) Wisconsin Retirement System Schedules
2) Local Retiree Life Insurance Fund Schedules
3) Management’s Discussion and Analysis

JOHNSON BLOCK AND COMPANY, INC. | 9701 Brader Way, Suite 202, Middleton, Wi 53562 | Phone: 608.274.2002 | Fax:




JBC

CPAs

Capital Area Regional Planning Commission
Page 2

Auditor Responsibilities

We will conduct our audit in accordance with GAAS. As part of an audit of financial statements in
accordance with GAAS, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinions. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal controls.

e Obtain an understanding of the system of internal control in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. However, we will communicate to you in writing
concerning any significant deficiencies or material weaknesses in internal control relevant to the
audit of the financial statements that we have identified during the audit.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Conclude, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether there are conditions or events, considered
in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Capital Area Regional Planning
Commission’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, together with the inherent limitations of internal control, an
unavoidable risk that some material misstatements of noncompliance may not be detected exists, even
though the audit is properly planned and performed in accordance with GAAS.

Our responsibility as auditors is limited to the period covered by our audit and does not extend to any other
periods.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

As previously discussed, as part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the basic financial
statements are free of material misstatement, we will perform tests of the Capital Area Regional Planning
Commission’s compliance with the provisions of applicable laws, regulations, contracts, and agreements.
However, the objective of our audit will not be to provide an opinion on overall compliance and we will
not express such an opinion.

Page 46 of 58



JBC

CPAs

Capital Area Regional Planning Commission

Page 3

Management Responsibilities

Our audit will be conducted on the basis that management acknowledge and understand that they have
responsibility:

—.

For the preparation and fair presentation of the basic financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America;

For the design, implementation, and maintenance of the system of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of basic financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to error, fraudulent financial reporting, misappropriation of assets, or
violations of laws, governmental regulations, grant agreements, or contractual agreements; and
To provide us with:

i.  Access to all information of which management is aware that is relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of the basic financial statements including the disclosures such as
records, documentation, and other matters;

ii.  Additional information that we may request from management for the purpose of the audit;
iii.  Unrestricted access to persons within the entity and others from whom we determine it

necessary to obtain audit evidence;

For including the auditor’s report in any document containing basic financial statements that
indicates that such basic financial statements have been audited by us;
For identifying and ensuring that the entity complies with the laws and regulations applicable to its
activities;
For adjusting the basic financial statements to correct material misstatements and confirming to us
in the management representation letter that the effects of any uncorrected misstatements
aggregated by us during the current engagement and pertaining to the latest period presented are
immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the basic financial statements as a whole; and
For acceptance of nonattest services, including identifying the proper party to oversee nonattest
work;
For maintaining adequate records, selecting and applying accounting principles, and safeguarding
assets;
For informing us of any known or suspected fraud affecting the entity involving management,
employees with significant role in the system of internal control and others where fraud could have
a material effect on the financials,
For the accuracy and completeness of all information provided,
For taking reasonable measures to safeguard protected personally identifiable and other sensitive
information; and
For confirming your understanding of your responsibilities as defined in this letter to us in your
management representation letter.

As part of our audit process, we will request from management written confirmation concerning
representations made to us in connection with the audit.

Page 47 of 58



JBC

CPAs

Capital Area Regional Planning Commission
Page 4

Nonattest Services
With respect to any nonattest services we perform, at the end of the year, we agree to perform the following:

e Preparation of financial statements
e Maintaining lease information, if requested or applicable

We will not assume management responsibilities on behalf of the Capital Area Regional Planning
Commission. However, we will provide advice and recommendations to assist management of the Capital
Area Regional Planning Commission in performing its responsibilities.

The Capital Area Regional Planning Commission’s management is responsible for (a) making all
management decisions and performing all management functions; (b) assigning a competent individual to
oversee the services; (c) evaluating the adequacy of the services performed; (d) evaluating and accepting
responsibility for the results of the services performed; and (e) designing, implementing, and maintaining
the system of internal control, including the process used to monitor the system of internal control.

Our responsibilities and limitations of the nonattest services are as follows:
e We will perform the services in accordance with applicable professional standards.

o The nonattest services are limited to the services previously outlined. Our firm, in its sole
professional judgment, reserves the right to refuse to do any procedure or take any action that could
be construed as making management decisions or assuming management responsibilities, including
determining account coding and approving journal entries.

Reporting

We will issue a written report upon completion of our audit of the Capital Area Regional Planning
Commission basic financial statements. Our report will be addressed to the Agency Director of the Capital
Area Regional Planning Commission. Circumstances may arise in which our report may differ from its
expected form and content based on the results of our audit. Depending on the nature of these circumstances,
it may be necessary for us to modify our opinions, add an emphasis-of-matter or other-matter paragraph(s)
to our auditor’s report, or if necessary, withdraw from the engagement. If our opinions on the basic financial
statements are other than unmodified, we will discuss the reasons with you in advance. If, for any reason,
we are unable to complete the audit or are unable to form or have not formed opinions, we may decline to
express opinions or to issue a report as a result of this engagement.

Page 48 of 58



JBC

CPAs

Capital Area Regional Planning Commission
Page 5

Other

We understand that your employees will prepare all confirmations we request and will locate any documents
or support for any other transactions we select for testing.

If you intend to publish or otherwise reproduce the basic financial statements and make reference to our
firm, you agree to provide us with printers’ proofs or masters for our review and approval before printing.
You also agree to provide us with a copy of the final reproduced material for our approval before it is
distributed.

Regarding the electronic dissemination of audited financial statements, including financial statements
published electronically on your Internet website, you understand that electronic sites are a means to
distribute information and, therefore, we are not required to read the information contained in these sites or
to consider the consistency of other information in the electronic site with the original document.

Professional standards prohibit us from being the sole host and/or the sole storage for your financial and
non-financial data. As such, it is your responsibility to maintain your original data and records and we
cannot be responsible to maintain such original information. By signing this engagement letter, you affirm
that you have all the data and records required to make your books and records complete.

Provisions of Engagement Administration, Timing and Fees

We will maintain various physical, electronic, policy, and procedural safeguards to guard your information
and personal data. We may communicate with you and /or store data through email, facsimile, third-party
vendor secured portals or cloud environments, or other electronic means. If a more secure medium of
communication is desired, we will provide you with various electronic alternatives. Electronic data that is
confidential may be transmitted and/or stored using these methods and you authorize us to do so.
Notwithstanding the security measures and safeguards employed by us and/or our third-party vendors, you
accept that we have no control over the unauthorized interception or breach of communications and/or data.
All confidential, proprietary, and personally identifiable information should be transmitted through secure
means which we have available. We may communicate with you or your other representatives through
unencrypted email and you authorize us to do so. Emails can be intercepted and read, disclosed, or otherwise
used or shared with an unintended third party, or may not be delivered to each of the parties or persons to
whom they were originally directed. As such we cannot guarantee emails will be read only by the intended
recipient(s). In the event of a data breach, each of us agrees to notify each other in the most expedient time
possible and without unreasonable delay. We specifically disclaim and waive any liability or responsibility
whatsoever for the unauthorized interception and/or disclosure of confidential or proprietary information
transmitted in connection with the performance of this engagement, except to the extent determined as a
result from our gross negligence or willful misconduct.

Page 49 of 58



JBC

CPAs

Capital Area Regional Planning Commission
Page 6

Provisions of Engagement Administration, Timing and Fees (Continued)

Many banks have engaged a third party to electronically process cash or debt audit confirmation requests,
and certain of those banks have mandated the use of this service. Further, such third-party confirmation
requests processors also provide for the electronic (and manual) processing of other confirmation types
(e.g. legal, accounts receivable, and accounts payable). To the extent applicable, the Capital Area Regional
Planning Commission hereby authorizes Johnson Block & Company, Inc. to participate in such
confirmation processes, including through the third party’s website (e.g. by entering the Capital Area
Regional Planning Commission bank account information to initiate the process and then accessing the
bank’s confirmation response), and agrees that Johnson Block & Company, Inc. shall have no liability in
connection therewith.

Brett Hofmeister, CPA is the engagement partner for the audit services specified in this letter. The
engagement partner’s responsibilities include supervising Johnson Block & Company, Inc.’s services
performed as part of this engagement and signing or authorizing another qualified firm representative to
sign the audit report.

Our fees are based on the amount of time required at various levels of responsibility, plus actual out-of-
pocket expenses. Based on our preliminary estimates, the total fees and expenses should approximate the
following:

Our fees for these services will be at our standard hourly rate plus out-of-pocket costs (such as report
reproduction, word processing, postage, travel, copies, telephone, confirmation service provider fees, etc.)
except that we agree that our gross fee, including expenses, will not exceed $11,000.

This letter was prepared under the assumption that a single audit performed in accordance with the Uniform
Guidance will not be required. If we are requested or required by governmental agencies to audit additional
funds or programs not included in our proposal, our time performing these services would be billed at our
standard hourly rates. The amount of time spent on a single audit is dependent on the type of major programs
to be tested.

Our invoices for these fees will be rendered as work progresses and are payable upon presentation. In
accordance with firm policies, work may be suspended if your account becomes 60 days or more overdue
and will not be resumed until your account is paid in full. If we elect to terminate our services for
nonpayment, you will be obligated to compensate us for all time expended and to reimburse us for all out-
of-pocket expenditures through the date of termination. Third-party confirmation providers for certain
financial institutions may invoice us for responding to confirmation requests and we will pass those costs
through to you.

Page 50 of 58



JBC

CPAs

Capital Area Regional Planning Commission
Page 7

Provisions of Engagement Administration, Timing and Fees (Continued)

During the course of the audit we may observe opportunities for economy in, or improved controls over,
your operations. We will bring such matters to the attention of the appropriate level of management, either
orally or in writing.

We agree to retain our audit documentation or work papers for a period of at least seven years from the date
of our report.

You agree to inform us of facts that may affect the basic financial statements of which you may become
aware during the period from the date of the auditor’s report to the date the financial statements are issued.

At the conclusion of our audit engagement, we will communicate to the Agency Director the following
significant findings from the audit:

Our view about the qualitative aspects of the entity’s significant accounting practices;

Significant difficulties, if any, encountered during the audit;

Uncorrected misstatements, other than those we believe are trivial, if any;

Disagreements with management, if any;

Other findings or issues, if any, arising from the audit that are, in our professional judgment,

significant and relevant to those charged with governance regarding their oversight of the financial

reporting process;

e Material, corrected misstatements that were brought to the attention of management as a result of
our audit procedures;

e Representations we requested from management;

e Management’s consultations with other accountants, if any; and

e Significant issues, if any, arising from the audit that were discussed, or the subject of

correspondence, with management.

The audit documentation for this engagement is the property of Johnson Block and Company, Inc. and
constitutes confidential information. However, we may be requested to make certain audit documentation
available to regulators pursuant to authority given to it by law or regulation, or to peer reviewers. If
requested, access to such audit documentation will be provided under the supervision of Johnson Block and
Company Inc.’s personnel. Furthermore, upon request, we may provide copies of selected audit
documentation to regulators. The regulators may intend, or decide, to distribute the copies of information
contained therein to others, including other governmental agencies.

Changes in Accounting and Audit Standards
Standard setters and regulators continue to evaluate and modify standards. Such changes may result in new
or revised financial reporting and disclosure requirements or expand the nature, timing, and scope of the

activities we are required to perform. To the extent that the amount of time required to provide the services
described in this letter increases due to such changes, our fee may need to be adjusted.

Page 51 of 58



JBC

CPAs

Capital Area Regional Planning Commission
Page 8

Unanticipated Services

We do not anticipate encountering the need to perform additional services beyond those described in this
letter. However, below are listings of services considered to be outside the scope of our engagement. If any
such service needs to be completed before the audit can proceed in an efficient manner, we will determine
whether we can provide the service and maintain our independence. If appropriate, we will notify you and
provide a fair and reasonable price for providing the service. We will bill you for the service at periodic
dates after the additional service has been performed.

Bookkeeping services

Bookkeeping services are not audit services. Bookkeeping services include but are not limited to the
following activities:

Preparation of a trial balance
e Account or bank statement reconciliations
Capital asset accounting (e.g., calculating depreciation, identify capital assets for additions and
deletions), unless previously agreed to as part of services to be provided
o Significant additional time spent calculating accruals
Processing immaterial adjustments through the financial statements requested by management
o Adjusting the financial statements for new activities and new disclosures

Additional work resulting from unanticipated changes in your organization or accounting records

If your organization undergoes significant changes in key personnel, accounting systems, and/or internal
control, we are required to update our audit documentation and audit plan. The following are examples of
situations that will require additional audit work:

e Deterioration in the quality of the entity’s accounting records during the current-year engagement
in comparison to the prior-year engagement

e Significant new accounting issues, significant changes in your volume of business or new or
unusual transactions
Changes in audit scope or requirements resulting from changes in your activities

e Erroneous or incomplete accounting records
Implementation or adoption of new or existing accounting, reporting, regulatory, or tax
requirements and any applicable financial statement disclosures

Page 52 of 58



JBC

CPAs

Capital Area Regional Planning Commission
Page 9

Please sign and return this letter to indicate your acknowledgment of, and agreement with, the arrangements
for our audit of the basic financial statements including our respective responsibilities.

We appreciate the opportunity to be your financial statement auditors and look forward to working with
you and your staff.

Respectfully,

(%ﬁm Pt Comghny, 1.

Johnson Block & Company, Inc.
RESPONSE:
This letter correctly sets forth our understanding.

Acknowledged and agreed on behalf of the Capital Area Regional Planning Commission by:

Management Signature:

Title:

Date:

Governance Signature:

Title:

Date:

Page 53 of 58



ADDENDUM A
CONSULTING AGREEMENT

This Consulting Agreement dated this 28™ day of October, 2025 (this “Agreement”) is entered into by and
between the Capital Area Regional Planning Commission, 100 State Street, Suite 400, Madison, W1 53703
(“CARPC”), and Johnson Block & Company, 9701 Brader Way, Suite 202, Middleton, WI 53562 (“JBC”)
(“Consultant” and collectively, the “Parties”).

RECITALS
WHEREAS, CARPC is required to complete a financial audit on an annual basis.

WHEREAS, CARPC selected Consultant through a competitive bidding process in 2019 and CARPC
contracted with Consultant to prepare CARPC audits for 2019, 2020, 2021, and 2022.

WHEREAS, Consultant satisfactorily completed audits for each year under the terms of the contract
between CARPC and JBC.

WHEREAS, CARPC wishes to secure audit services from Consultant for an audit for 2025 and Consultant
wishes to provide those audit services.

WHEREAS, The Consultant represents that it has sufficient knowledge and experience to perform the
services described in this Agreement.

WHEREAS, CARPC and the Consultant intend to be bound by the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above recitals, which are contractual, the Parties
agree as follows:

1. Consulting Services. The Consultant will provide the services and products described in
the attached Scope of Services and timeline, which is marked Exhibit A and incorporated by reference
(“Scope of Services”). The Consultant shall have the complete professional, managerial, or technical
responsibility for the validity, accuracy, and reliability of the Scope of Services. CARPC and the
Consultant will cooperate with each other and provide timely information and timely status to the other
party regarding their efforts in order to facilitate the success of the Scope of Services. The Consultant’s
services shall include all activities necessary to its performance of the Scope of Services. CARPC shall
have the right, from time to time, by written supplement, to make changes in or additions to the Scope of
Services, and Consultant agrees to comply with such changes. If such changes cause a material increase
or decrease in the Consultant’s cost or in the time for performance, an equitable adjustment in the price
and time for the performance shall be made. Any claims for adjustment must be asserted by Consultant in
writing within thirty (30) days after the cause of such claim has occurred. If a dispute arises as to the
equitable adjustment, the Consultant shall, at the direction of CARPC, proceed with the Scope of Services,
as adjusted, pending resolution of the dispute.

Page 54 of 58



2. Payment. In consideration of the services to be performed by Consultant, CARPC shall
pay to Consultant fees in the amounts shown in Exhibit A and as set forth in this Section 2. CARPC will
pay all undisputed charges to the Consultant within thirty (30) days of the receipt of the Consultant’s
written invoice. Any payments not received by Consultant within the established timeframe will be subject
to an interest rate of 1.5% per month or a fraction thereof from date of receipt of Consultant’s written
invoice by CARPC. Any additional compensation for services performed by Consultant outside the Scope
of Services must be approved in advance by CARPC in writing. If CARPC terminates this Agreement,
CARPC is responsible for the payment of fees and authorized reimbursable expenses incurred by the
Consultant through the date of its termination notice. For any reimbursable third-party expenses and
products, Consultant will provide reasonable documentation as requested by CARPC.

3. Term.

a. This Agreement shall commence upon execution by the Parties and, unless terminated
as described below, shall continue in full force and effect until satisfactory completion
of the Scope of Services has been achieved by the Consultant or June 30, 2026,
whichever comes first. Regardless of the above, CARPC reserves the right to
terminate this Agreement without penalty at any time, with or without cause, upon the
giving of five (5) days’ written notice to the Consultant. Upon completion of
Consultant’s services, or at such other time as may be requested by CARPC,
Consultant shall provide to CARPC all documents, records, photos, videos and
notebooks, including copies thereof, whether prepared by Consultant or others, in the
Consultant’s possession relating to the Scope of Services.

b. The Consultant shall have the right to stop performing services under this Agreement
during any period when CARPC is in default, but only after

c. giving two (2) business days’ written notice to CARPC, specifying the default and
stating the Consultant’s intention to stop performing services.

4. Standard of Performance. Consultant shall perform its services with care, skill and
diligence, in accordance with the applicable professional standards currently recognized by the
Consultant’s profession, and shall be responsible for the professional quality, technical accuracy,
completeness, and coordination of all reports, designs, drawings, plans, information, specifications, and
other items and services furnished under this Agreement. If Consultant fails to meet applicable
professional standards, Consultant shall, without additional compensation, correct or revise any errors or
deficiencies in its reports, drawings, specifications, designs and other items or services.

5. Independent Contractor. It is the intention of the Parties that Consultant shall be an
independent contractor in the performance of the Scope of Services, and that nothing contained in this
Agreement shall be construed to be inconsistent with the Consultant’s status as an independent contractor.
It is understood that the fees or any other amounts CARPC pays Consultant under this Agreement shall
not be considered salary for pension purposes, and Consultant will not be entitled to any of the other fringe
and supplemental benefits of CARPC nor will CARPC withhold any social security (FICA) or similar
contributions from Consultant’s fee. Consultant is responsible for the payment of all payroll taxes or
contributions to its personnel performing services hereunder and shall be liable for failure to do so.

Page 55 of 58



6. Intellectual Property. Consultant acknowledges and agrees that the work performed by
the Consultant as described in the Scope of Services shall be the sole property of CARPC. Consultant
does hereby assign to CARPC all rights, title, and interest in and to the work performed under the Scope
of Services, including, without limitation, all copyrights and other proprietary rights therein. Upon
CARPC’s request, Consultant shall execute all papers and documents and perform all other acts necessary
or appropriate to evidence CARPC’s ownership of the work product and the abovementioned proprietary
rights. CARPC shall have unrestricted authority to publish, disclose, distribute, and other use, copyright,
or patent any such material produced by Consultant under this Agreement.

7. Warranties. Consultant hereby represents and warrants that it has all authority, licenses,
permits, and consents necessary to enter into and perform its obligations under this Agreement, and will
fully comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, ordinances, codes, and regulations in
performing its services.

8. Indemnification. To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Consultant agrees to save,
indemnify, hold harmless CARPC, its officers, directors, commissioners, employees, representatives, and
agents from and against any claims, actions, proceedings, losses, judgments, penalties, fines, damages,
liabilities, or costs and expenses (including reasonable attorneys’ fees) based upon or arising out of
Consultant’s performance of the duties under this Agreement.

9. Limitation of Liability. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this
Agreement or provided for under any applicable law, CARPC shall not be liable to Consultant or
Consultant’s subcontractors or suppliers for incidental, indirect, special, exemplary, or consequential
damages arising out of this Agreement, whether in tort, strict liability, breach of contract, breach of express
or implied warranty, or any other claim permitted under applicable law.

10. Insurance. During the term of this Agreement, Consultant shall provide and maintain at
its own expense the following kinds of insurance with limits of liability as set forth below:

Insurance Limits of Liability
Workers Compensation Statutory
Commercial general liability $2,000,000
Automobile liability $1,000,000
Professional errors and omission $1,000,000

Consultant agrees to provide CARPC with a Certificate of Insurance evidencing the coverages
required above. This Certificate of Insurance shall also provide for thirty (30) days’ prior written notice to
CARPC in the event of cancellation.

11. Public Announcement. Consultant shall not make any announcement or release of
information concerning the Scope of Services or the existence of this Agreement until such release has
been submitted to and approved in writing by CARPC.

12. Non-Assignability. Consultant shall not subcontract or assign this Agreement, or
otherwise dispose of its right, title, or interest therein, without obtaining the prior written consent of
CARPC. CARPC retains the right to approve or disapprove the assignment at its discretion.

Page 56 of 58



13. Non-Discrimination, Affirmative Action, and Civil Rights Compliance. Both parties
agree not to discriminate against any person involved with this engagement, in any manner, on the basis

of age, race, religion, color, sex, national origin, or ancestry, handicap (as defined in Section 504 and the
Americans with Disabilities Act), physical condition, developmental disability, arrest or conviction record
(as defined in Wis. Stat. § 111.32), sexual orientation, marital status, or military participation.

14. Liquidated Damages. If Consultant does not finalize the services as shown in the Scope
of Services by November 30, 2025, as indicated on the timeline in Exhibit A, through no fault of CARPC,
CARPC shall receive a credit of five percent (5%) of the total contract price for every five (5) days, or
portion thereof, that the services are not completed per the terms of this Agreement. Such amount shall be
treated as liquidated damages and not as a penalty for the loss of the use of any products in a final completed
state. It is hereby understood that the liquidated damages provided for herein shall be in addition to any
other direct and/or consequential losses or damages that CARPC may incur by reason of such delay.

15. Supervision. Consultant will report to and be under the supervision of Mike Rupiper,
Deputy Agency Director and Director of Environmental Resources Planning.

16. Severability. The invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability of any provision of this
Agreement shall not affect the validity, legality, or enforceability of any other provision of this Agreement,
which shall remain in full force and effect.

17. Attorneys’ Fees. If any action at law or in equity is brought to enforce or interpret the
provisions of this Agreement, the prevailing party will be entitled to its reasonable attorneys’ fees, which
may be set by the court in the same action or in a separate action brought for that purpose, in addition to
any other relief to which that party may be entitled.

18. Governing Law: Jurisdiction. This Agreement shall be governed, construed, and
enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of Wisconsin, without regard to its conflict of laws rules.

19. Arbitration. In the event of any dispute, claim, question, or disagreement arising from or
relating to this Agreement or the breach thereof, the Parties hereto shall use their best efforts to settle the
dispute, claim, question, or disagreement. To this effect, they shall consult and negotiate with each other in
good faith and, recognizing their mutual interests, attempt to reach a just and equitable solution satisfactory
to both Parties. If they do not reach such solution within a period of sixty (60) days, then, upon notice by
either part to the other, all disputes, claims, questions, or differences shall be finally settled by arbitration
administered by the American Arbitration Association in accordance with the provisions of its Commercial
Arbitration Rules. The number of arbitrators shall be three (3). The place of arbitration shall be Madison,
Wisconsin. Judgment on the award rendered by the arbitrators may be entered in any court having
jurisdiction thereof.

20. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed to be an original, but all of which, taken together, shall constitute one and the same agreement.

21. Conflicting Terms. In the event of conflict or inconsistencies between the terms and
conditions of the main body of this Agreement and such additional terms and conditions included in the
Exhibits, the terms of the main body of this Agreement shall govern and control.

22. Entire Agreement. This Agreement, together with the Exhibits, which are incorporated
into this Agreement by reference, supersedes any previous agreement or undertakings. This Agreement
may not be modified except in writing executed by both Parties.

Page 57 of 58



EXHIBIT A
SCOPE OF SERVICES

CARPC 2025 Fiscal Year Audit

PROJECT SCOPE AND TIMELINE

To prepare an audit of CARPC 2025 financials as detailed in the following documents, which are
incorporated by reference:

1. Request for Proposals April 8, 2019

2. Consultant’s Proposal dated October 28 2025

Project Milestones

January 15, 2026 Bank confirmations completed

January 15, 2026 Items list to CARPC and Accounting Service Provider

March 2026 Audit field work started / schedule for mid-March

April 2026 Draft audit completed

May 12,2026 Draft audit review completed by CARPC and Accounting Service Provider
May 15 - 26, 2026 Final audit review / close-out meeting

June 1, 2026 Audit presentation / CARPC Executive Committee meeting

FEES

Actual Cost Not to Exceed $11,000 for the financial portion of the audit.

Page 58 of 58


https://carpc.sharepoint.com/:w:/g/Ea4YUnu8trFMn9Bt26Cp15YBGym-YWW_KdUrLzLSyva3oA?e=1XrJFW
https://carpc.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/EbG50i6vAABEuegrB3zrAz4B8UkBXz_6q0hMilwbD5rV5A?e=ezgyfy
https://carpc.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/EbG50i6vAABEuegrB3zrAz4B8UkBXz_6q0hMilwbD5rV5A?e=ezgyfy

	CS-00.0_ExecCmte_Agenda_Final_2025-11-10
	CS-03.0_ExecCmte_Minutes_DRAFT_2025-10-06
	CS-04.0_ExecCmte_Financials_2025-09 Cover Sheet
	CS-04.1_ExecCmte_Capital Area Region Planning Commission Report 2025
	CS-05.0_ExecCmte_Approve 2026 Cost Allocation Plan Cover Sheet
	CS-05.1_2026_CARPC_Cost_Allocation_Plan
	Purpose
	Allocation of Costs
	Indirect Salary Narrative
	ORGANIZATIONAL CHART

	CS-06.0_ExecCmte_Approve_Contract_Mapping_Data
	CS-06.1_Contract_for_Mapping_Data_Services_2026
	CS-07.0_ExecCmte_Joint Planning Assistance Services Agreement Cover Sheet
	CS-07.1_CARPC-Fitchburg-Oregon Agreement 2025_11_4
	CS-08.0_ExecCmte_2026 Audit Services Cover Sheet
	CS-08.1_Engagement Letter for the YE 12.31.25 Govt Standard Audit
	Respectfully,
	RESPONSE:
	This letter correctly sets forth our understanding.
	Acknowledged and agreed on behalf of the Capital Area Regional Planning Commission by:
	Management Signature:
	Title:
	Governance Signature:
	Title:




